
AGENDA 
Caribou Planning Board

Regular Meeting
Thursday October 12, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.

The meeting will be broadcast on Cable Channel 1301 and the City’s YouTube Channel. 
Public Comments submitted prior to the meeting no later than 4:00 pm on Thursday, September 7, 2023, will

be read during the meeting. Send comments to City Manager Penny Thompson at 
pthompson@cariboumaine.org. 

I. Call Meeting to Order, Determine Quorum, disclosure of conflicts of interest  Pages

II. Public Hearings   Site design review – Kip Griffin 960 Access Highway  002-098 

III. Approval of minutes 
a. Review and approval of September 7, 2023, Planning Board Meeting Minutes 099-100 

IV. City Council Liaison Updates

V. New Business
a. Community Conversation on Vision & Mission, 10.26.2023 Comp Plan  101 
b. Exchange ideas to boost housing in Caribou     102  

VI. Old Business 
a. LD 2003 / LD 1706 update       103-123 
b. Update on grant funded projects       124-125 
c. Blight  
      

VII. Staff Report          126-128
            
     

VIII. Adjournment 

City of Caribou, Maine Municipal Building
25 High Street 

Caribou, ME 04736 
Telephone (207) 493-3324 

Fax (207 498-3954 
ib i



  

 
Caribou Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, September 7, 2023 @ 6:00 pm 

City Council Chambers 
 

 
Members Present: Steve Wentworth, Frank McElwain, James Belanger, Eric Hitchcock, Amanda Jandreau, 
Justin Staples, David Corriveau, Dan Bagley, Council Liaison, Penny Thompson, Staff 
Others in Attendance:  Kip Griffin, Karen Gorman 
 
 
I. Call Meeting to Order, Determine Quorum, disclosure of conflicts of interest 

Chairperson Amanda Jandreau called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm, all were present. 
No conflicts of interest. 
 

 
II. Public Hearings 

None. 
 
 

III. Approval of minutes 
Minutes of August 3, 2023 were reviewed and approved. 
 
Motion by David Corriveau to approve minutes, seconded by Frank McElwain. 
Roll Call Vote: 

            Steve Wentworth –Yes; Frank McElwain - Yes; James Belanger – Yes; Eric Hitchcock – Yes;  
            Justin Staples – Yes; David Corriveau – Yes; Amanda Jandreau – Yes. 

.  Passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 

IV. Council Liaison Update 
 Council liaison Dan Bagley, discussed a Land Bank.   

o Working on a development plan – how to follow the whole process through. 
o Need to keep an eye on the tax acquired property new guidance. 
o CEGC would be a good advisory group. 

 
 Discussion on tax acquired property 

 
  

V. New Business 
a. Site design review – Kip Griffin 960 Access Highway 

- - discussion with Kip Griffin about his business operation 
- - could send to MMA Legal – what conditions 
- - 1 dismantled car – max – parts, drained fluids 

- - Action Item – From MMA Legal – can we waive the 300’ requirement 
 
Motion by Eric Hitchcock to have a public hearing, seconded by David Corriveau. 
Roll Call Vote: 

            Steve Wentworth –Yes; Frank McElwain - Yes; James Belanger – Yes; Eric Hitchcock – Yes;  
            Justin Staples – Yes; David Corriveau – Yes; Amanda Jandreau – Yes. 

 
 

City of Caribou, Maine 
Municipal Building 

  25 High Street 
  Caribou, ME 04736 

  Telephone (207) 493-3324 
  Fax (207 498-3954 

 www.cariboumaine.org 



.  Passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 

b. Looking ahead to projects in the pipeline: 
- Police station 
-Recycler permit 
 
 

VI. Old Business 
a. Blight – research from last meeting. It was noted to use the Property Maintenance Code; Vacant Building 

Code; Ordinances; and Blight Tool Kit, etc. The Board agreed they would like to have a dangerous building 
action taken for the Sweden Street property. 

b. Comprehensive Plan – August 31 workshop (Economy), September 28 (Public Facilities) 
c. Update on grant funded projects -workgroups, public input, and “Big Picture” initiative name. 
d. PL 2021, ch. 672 (LD2003) and PL 2023, ch. 192 (LD 1706) 

 
 
VII. Staff Report – by Penny Thompson, City Manager  

a. Karen Gorman thanked the Planning Board members 
b. Comprehensive Plan – using Social Media 
c. Talked about CEO position 
d. Loring updates – not in talks with LDA coverage 
e. Monthly permit report 

 
VIII. Next Meeting 

a. October 12, 2023, at 6:00 pm at the Caribou City Council Chambers 
b. Dave Corriveau asked to add to the next agenda - exchange ideas on boosting housing in Caribou 

    
 

IX. Adjournment 
Motion by David Corriveau to adjourn, seconded by Frank McElwain 
Roll Call Vote: 

            Steve Wentworth –Yes; Frank McElwain - Yes; James Belanger – Yes; Eric Hitchcock – Yes;  
            Justin Staples – Yes; David Corriveau – Yes; Amanda Jandreau – Yes. 

.  Passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned 7:48 pm. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
James Belanger 
Planning Board Secretary                        

 
JRB/JK 



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Planning Board Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, City Manager 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
Re:   Community Conversation on Vision and Mission for the 2024-2034  Comp Plan  

  

Tonight, we are going to hear from Catherine Ingraham from CEI Consultants who will be our 
facilitator  for our Community Conversation on Vision and Mission for the 2024 – 2034 
Comprehensive Plan on October 26, 2023. 

Catherine (Cat) Ingraham is a resident of Perham. She has been working in community planning 
and development for about ten years. She started in municipal planning for Androscoggin County 
and moved into non-profit community development work in 2016. She has been working with 
Community Heart & Soul in her current capacity since 2020 in several towns/cities across Maine 
and one in Massachusetts. Cat says she is excited to work with Caribou.  

The logistics are October 26, 2023, 6:00 p.m. - 7:30 p.m., at the Caribou Wellness & Recreation 
Center. All are welcome and encouraged to attend this community visioning workshop and update 
on the Comprehensive Plan. Light refreshments and childcare will be provided. 

Catherine will take us through her vision for how this session will work and what we can do to 
help get feedback from Caribou citizens. 

For those who cannot attend, our website wonders have developed a website which will feature a 
form that will be active after the event. We also hope to be able to post updates and other feedback 
opportunities here. 

https://www.cariboumaine.org/caribou2034/ 

 

 

 



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Planning Board Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, City Manager 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
Re:   Exchange ideas on boosting housing in Caribou   

  

Planning Board member David Corriveau asked for an agenda item to have an exchange of ideas 
on boosting housing in Caribou. 

 

 



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Planning Board Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, City Manager 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
Re:   Update on LD 2003 / LD 1706  

  

LD 2003 was signed into law in April 2022 and requires municipalities to amend or create new 
zoning ordinances. It was designed to remove regulatory barriers to housing production, allow 
additional density for affordable housing developments, additional dwelling units per lot in 
residential areas, and accessory dwelling units on the same lot as a single-family home.  

LD 1706 clarifies the implementation date. The implementation date for Caribou is January 1, 
2024. I’m not convinced this is a reasonable target. The Department amended 19-100 CMR 
Chapter 5. That final rule was effective October 1, 2023. 

Housing Opportunity Program grant funding is available for service providers to support municipal 
ordinance development. The City of Caribou supported the application of Northern Maine 
Development Commission (NMDC) to obtain a 2023 Service Provider Grant. They were awarded 
the grant and could begin work on October 1, 2023. 

This legislation has established the Housing Opportunity Program within DECD and they are 
providing guidance (enclosed). 

The actions that will need to be taken by the City of Caribou: 

 Work with NMDC for ordinance development. 

Other considerations: 

 City can add provisions. Example: that one unit per lot with an ADU is owner-occupied. 
 Many areas of Caribou are served by subsurface wastewater disposal systems. 

 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

No action needed, this is for discussion so that staff can get direction.    

  







LD
 2

00
3 

is
 o

ne
 to

o
l t

o
 s

up
p

o
rt

 th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t o

f a
d

d
iti

o
na

l h
o

us
in

g
un

its
 in

 

in
cl

ud
in

g
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
o

us
in

g
 u

ni
ts

. N
o

t a
ll 

un
its

 b
ui

lt 
ac

co
rd

in
g

 to
 th

e 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
ts

 in
 L

D
 2

00
3 

m
us

t b
e 

"a
ffo

rd
ab

le
" 

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
H

U
D

.

al
lo

w
in

g
 m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 to
:

C
o

nt
in

ue
 to

 c
re

at
e 

la
nd

 u
se

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l r
es

o
ur

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
m

p
re

he
ns

iv
e 

p
la

nn
in

g
;

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s;

En
fo

rc
e 

sh
o

re
la

nd
 z

o
ni

ng
; a

nd
C

re
at

e 
ra

te
 o

f g
ro

w
th

 o
rd

in
an

ce
s.



B
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 o

n 
o

r a
fte

r a
 m

un
ic

ip
al

ity
's

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

tio
n 

d
at

e;

B
e 

in
 a

 d
es

ig
na

te
d

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a 
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

M
ai

ne
 la

w
 o

r s
er

ve
d

 



Th
e 

nu
m

b
er

 o
f u

ni
ts

 a
llo

w
ed

 w
ill

 b
e 

2.
5 

tim
es

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 th
e 



Fo
r r

en
ta

ls
: a

 h
o

us
eh

o
ld

 w
ith

 a
n 

in
co

m
e 

at
 n

o
 m

o
re

 th
an

 8
0%

 
o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
m

ed
ia

n 
in

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, a
s 

d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t. 

 

Fo
r h

o
m

eo
w

ne
rs

: a
 h

o
us

eh
o

ld
 w

ith
 a

n 
in

co
m

e 
at

 m
o

re
 th

an
 

d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

H
U

D
, m

us
t b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ffo

rd
 a

t l
ea

st
 5

1%
 o

f t
he

 
un

its
 in

 th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t. 

co
ve

na
nt

 fo
r 

at
 le

as
t 3

0 
ye

ar
s.





G
en

er
al

 R
ul

e:
 U

p
 t

o
 2

 U
ni

ts

un
it.

d
w

el
lin

g
 u

ni
ts

 e
ith

er
 a

tt
ac

he
d

, 

Ex
ce

p
ti

o
n:

 U
p

 to
 4

 U
n

it
s 

un
it 

an
d

:

se
w

er
 (o

r a
 c

om
p

ar
ab

le
 







If 
m

o
re

 th
an

 o
ne

 d
w

el
lin

g
 u

ni
t i

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
o

f t
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
o

f L
D

 2
00

3,
 th

e 
lo

t i
s 

no
t e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
m

un
ic

ip
al

ity
.

Fo
r e

xa
m

p
le

, i
f a

 lo
t o

w
ne

r 

ex
is

tin
g

 s
in

g
le

-fa
m

ily
 h

o
m

e,
 a

 lo
t 

o
w

ne
r 

w
o

ul
d

 n
o

t b
e 

ab
le

  t
o

 b
ui

ld
 a

n 
ac

ce
ss

o
ry

 d
w

el
lin

g
 u

ni
t o

n 
th

at
 lo

t a
s 

w
el

l, 
un

le
ss

 th
is

 w
as

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

 





30
-A

 
M

.R
.S

.

A
D

U
s 

m
us

tb
e 

at
 le

as
t 1

90
 s

q
ua

re
 fe

et
 in

 s
iz

e.
 M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 c
an

 s
et

 a
 

re
q

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
cc

es
so

ry
 d

w
el

lin
g

 u
ni

ts
 o

f t
he

 m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
 

















Update on grant funded projects     October 11, 2023 

 FY2023     $900,000 

–  
ASAP  

 
Grantee training   

 
 

 

       UNKNOWN 
A  EPA / DEP onsite  
 

    
Paperwork to accept grant and start  

was    
 

 

 

FY2022          
 

 
FY2022      

 
 
FY2023        

 
 
FY2023  Senator King   

 
 

Funds 

2021  Broadband Study 

2022   

2023   

 

–  

FY2022      

FY2023  -o   



Visit Caribou             Page 2 

on the 
 

 

 

-  
  

 

Broadband 

There are contract issues t  

 

–  

 

 

Step 1 -  – RFP is out now (due Friday) 

The Caribou City  for  

O are using Madawaska, Van Buren, 

  

 

M
 

 

  

 







Monthly Permit Report

September 2023

CURRENT YEAR PRIOR YEAR PRIOR YEAR

MONTH TO DATE MONTH TO DATE

BUILDING PERMITS 3 35 5 45

HOMES 0 4 0 2

MOBILE HOMES 0 0 0 2

MULTI-FAMILY 0 0 0 0

COMMERCIAL 0 11 0 5

EXEMPT 0 4 0 1

PLUMBING PERMITS

INTERNAL 1 12 0 11

EXTERNAL 0 9 1 6

DEMO PERMITS 0 9 1 16

SIGN PERMITS 0 3 1 12

Year-to-Date is January 2023 to September 2023


